




 

 

SPECIAL SELECTMEN’S MEETING 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

MINUTES 

Monday, May 8, 2023 

Groveland Town Hall 

183 Main Street, Back Hall Conference Room 

Groveland, MA 01834 

 

Members present: Edward Watson, Jason Naves, Kathleen Kastrinelis, Daniel MacDonald, Mark 
Parenteau  
Others present: Jeffrey Gillen, Rebecca Oldham   
 
Chairman MacDonald opened the meeting at 7:45PM. Roll call vote: Selectman MacDonald, 
yes; Selectman Kastrinelis, yes; Selectmen Parenteau, yes; Selectman Naves, yes, Selectman 
Watson, yes 
 
Chairman MacDonald made a motion to enter into executive session in accordance with MGL 
Ch. 30A §21(a)2, to conduct strategy sessions in preparations for negotiations with nonunion 
personnel or to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion 
personnel (Police Chief) and not return to Open Session. Roll call vote to enter Executive 
Session. Roll call vote: Selectman MacDonald, yes; Selectman Kastrinelis, yes; Selectmen 
Parenteau, yes; Selectman Naves, yes, Selectman Watson, yes 
 
Discussed the proposed changes. FY24 salary change increase to $151,988. This considers the 
Wage and Classification Study from the Collins Center. The following year is proposed to 
increase by about 3% for FY25 and FY26. The only other change was a $50 increase to the 
clothing allowance.   
 
Selectmen Kastrinelis motioned to approve the contract as drafted. Selectman Naves seconded. 
Roll call vote: Selectman MacDonald, yes; Selectman Kastrinelis, yes; Selectmen Parenteau, yes; 
Selectman Naves, yes, Selectman Watson, yes.  
 
Motion to adjourn at 8:07PM. Roll call vote: Selectman MacDonald, yes; Selectman Kastrinelis, 
yes; Selectmen Parenteau, yes; Selectman Naves, yes, Selectman Watson, yes.  
 
Minutes Respectfully Submitted by Rebecca Oldham  



���������	
���� ���������� �������������������	�������������� �������������������� �� !  "�����#���$%&$'%���(���#���$)*$%%���+����,�	--��
���$ ���#�-�,�������$ ������������./����$ ���	������$*&%�0123456�78��#��$958318:;4���<�-�.��$%=*>=���(����$?2;3343@A562B438���/��$**)>=&C���#/�����������D$ ���E-������/��-F���
G$ ��(�����������������
�$ ���(���������+!�,�H�/�
���$ ��������������$�� �#�-��,�(����$�� �E�/���#�-��,�(����$�� �	������������-�������������F����I��J�K���
L$�� �M���"
/��F��$�� ����
��./��,���
F����$�� �M����./��,����
F����$�� �"�
F������������$��N��������-����#����$�� �"��������M�
�������$�� �.�-�������������/�������$�� �M�
��������F���$�� ���������#���/�.��������$���%(���������������
����$�� �O�,,���������$�� �"�����.�
������$��P��F���
�$�� �#����$�� �"������$��
QF����RK�� �S� TDS �QF����RK�� �S�U�D  

V::?W4X�YZ$�����[\W83\$�]���UTK�� �S�URD�̂��_13583\$�]���UTK�� �S�URD�̂

`





1

Rebecca Oldham

From: Booking system <no-reply@grovelandma.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 12:36 PM

To: Rebecca Oldham

Subject: You've received a new booking request!

You need to approve a new booking Pines Area ‐ Pavilion for: June 10, 2023 10:00 ‐ June 10, 2023 16:00 
 
Person detail information: 

Start Time:10:00 
End Time:16:00 
Name of Applicant:Leonard Lee Thomas 
Type of Permit:1 
Person in Charge:Leonard Lee thomas 
Address:4 Baldwin Terrace 
Town:Groveland 
Zip Code:01834 
Email:leonard.l.thomas@gmail.com 
Phone:978‐373‐1443 
This event is::2 
Open to the public?:2 
Estimated attendance:80 
Estimated No. of Vehicles:40 
Parking Plan: 
Parking Lot Type of Event: 
11 Other Type of Event: 
Family Reunion All tents and pavilions to be used (size, etc): 
Fee Schedule: 
1 Police Chief Discussion: 
May 31, 2023 Fire Chief Discussion: 
May 31, 2023 Security Details: 
Grills/Propane Tanks: 
Sanitary Facilities: 
Company Providing the Units: 
Facilities used: 
Private Trash Containers: 
TRASH — Private Trash Container(s) and/or Dumpster(s) may be required for events that exceed 100 or more. 
Entertainment License: 
Raffle Permit: 
Sales Concessions: 
Insurance: 
Tents: 
Signage: 
 
 
Currently a new booking is waiting for approval. Please visit the moderation panel https://grovelandma.com/wp‐
admin/admin.php?page=wpbc&view_mode=vm_listing&tab=actions&wh_booking_id=27. 
 



1

Rebecca Oldham

From: Booking system <no-reply@grovelandma.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 12:31 PM

To: Rebecca Oldham

Subject: You've received a new booking request!

You need to approve a new booking Pines Area ‐ Utility Field #2 for: June 10, 2023 10:00 ‐ June 10, 2023 16:00 
 
Person detail information: 

Start Time:10:00 
End Time:16:00 
Organization Name: 
Person in Charge: 
Address:4 Baldwin Terrace 
Town:Groveland 
Zip Code:01834 
Email:leonard.l.thomas@gmail.com 
Phone:978‐373‐1443 
How many games?: 
How many players?: 
How many hours?: 
Details: 
 
 
Currently a new booking is waiting for approval. Please visit the moderation panel https://grovelandma.com/wp‐
admin/admin.php?page=wpbc&view_mode=vm_listing&tab=actions&wh_booking_id=26. 
 
Thank you, Town of Groveland, MA 
https://grovelandma.com 



TOWN OF GROVELAND 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

One‐Day Liquor License Application 
Host Information 

183 Main Street 
Groveland, MA 01834 

PHONE: 

(978)556‐7204

Host’s Name:    

Type of Host (please circle one):  Individual  Non‐Profit Corp.  For‐Profit Corp. 

Host’s Address:     

Tax ID No. (if Corporation):    

Details of Event: 

Date of Event:   Hours of Event:  

The hours during which sales of alcoholic beverages may be made under a one‐day license shall be from 11:00am 
to 11:00pm, Monday through Saturday, and from 12 noon to 11:00pm on Sundays, Memorial Day, or Christmas 

Day (or the day following when Christmas Day is on a Sunday). 

All beverage/glasses/bottles or other containers must be removed from tables and service bar area one‐half hour 
after closing time or 11:00pm, whichever first occurs. Patrons must be off premises no later than fifteen minutes 

after closing. Licensed operators and employees must be off premises no later than one hour after closing. 

Type of Event (i.e. banquet, concert, party, etc):  

Address of Event:    

Owner of Premises:   Phone No. of Premises:    

Expected No. of People:   Admission Charge (if any):  

Alcohol will be (please circle one):  Sold  Given Away 

Type of License Applying For:  One‐Day All Alcoholic*  One‐Day Beer & Wine 

Charitable Wine Pouring  Charitable Wine Auction 

*Note: only non‐profit organizations are eligible for One‐Day All Alcoholic Licenses

If event is catered, name of caterer:  

Note: All alcohol must be purchased by the licensee from a licensed wholesaler/importer, manufacturer, farmer 
brewer or special permit holder. A list of approved vendors is available from the Alcoholic Beverage Control 

Commission. You cannot purchase alcoholic beverages from a package store. 

Page 1 of 3  Application formatted April 2022 

Wayne Currie

19 Orchard St, Merrimac, MA 01860

June 23rd, 2023 6-10pm

private party

201 Washington Street

Town of Groveland 518-521-9345

100 0

Vanessa Lopez

Vanessa Lopez

Vanessa Lopez



TOWN OF GROVELAND 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

For Office Use Only 
Date Application Received:   
Public Hearing Date:    

Additional Conditions for License:  

No one under 21 years of age may be served alcoholic beverages. 

Bartending Services:   Dated:  

Address:   

Telephone:   E‐Mail Address:  

Certification / Host’s Information 
I hereby certify under the pains and penalties of perjury that the above is true and accurate information, and that I will be 

responsible for the proper observance of the laws governing the dispensing of such alcoholic beverages. 

Signature:   Dated:  

Name:    

Home Address:    

Telephone:   E‐Mail Address:  

Relationship to Host:  

Prior Approval Required  Approval  Approval Date 

Police Department 

Fire Department 

Board of Health Agent 

Building Department 

Page 2 of 3 

Steven Sager 5/25/2023

978-884-4900 curriefamily4@gmail.com

5/31/2023

Wayne Currie

19 Orchard Street, Merrimac, MA

978-884-4900 curriefamily4@gmail.com

host

Vanessa Lopez
Wayne Currie

Vanessa Lopez



TOWN OF GROVELAND 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Instructions for Special One‐Day Liquor Permit 

Application must be filled out completely and filed 15 days prior to event in order for application to 
be considered by the Board of Selectmen at a Selectmen’s Meeting. 

Letter from location of event giving permission to have liquor on premises: 

 Name, phone number, address of person applying for liquor license
 Copy of server training certificate of people who will serve liquor (license #)
 $50.00 check for one‐day wine & malt license permit (Checks are payable to the Town of

Groveland)

 $75.00 check for one‐day all alcoholic license permit (Checks are payable to the Town of
Groveland)

 Liquor liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 naming the Town of Groveland as
an additional insured for the date of event is required. A copy of the policy must be
attached to this application.

Special Events 

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 138, § 14 
Rules for Special One‐Day Liquor License 

Local licensing authorities may issue special licenses for the sale of wines and/or malt beverages to a 
responsible manager of any indoor or outdoor activity or enterprise (for profit or non‐profit). Special 
licenses for the sale of all alcoholic beverages may be issued to non‐profit organizations only. No person 
may be granted special licenses for more than a total of 30 days per calendar year and no special license 
will be granted to any person while his application for an annual license under Section 12 is pending 
before the licensing authorities. 

No more than one license can be issued for the premises at one time. Therefore, a Section 14 special 
license cannot be issued for use in licensed premises. Regulations for Section 14 are found in 204 CMR 
7.00. 

Persons holding a special license must purchase alcoholic beverages from a licensed 
wholesaler/importer, manufacturer, farmer‐winery, farmer brewery or special permit holder. A person 
holding a Section 14 license cannot purchase alcoholic beverages from a package store. See 204 CMR 
7.05 

Page 3 of 3 















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UTILITY EASEMENT 

7 KATIE LANE, GROVELAND, MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that King Meadow Development, LLC, a 
Massachusetts limited liability company with a mailing address of 211 Seven Star Road, 
Groveland, Essex County, Massachusetts 01834, hereinafter referred to as "Grantor," for 
consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration paid, grants to the 
Town of Groveland, acting by and through its Board of Selectmen, hereinafter referred to as 
"Grantee," a municipal corporation duly established by law and having its principal place of 
business at 183 Main Street, Groveland, Essex County, Massachusetts 01834, and their 
successors and assigns forever, with Quitclaim Covenants, the perpetual and exclusive right and 
easement in, on or under the Grantor's land located at 7 Katie Lane, Groveland, Essex County, 
Massachusetts, for the Grantee to erect, operate, maintain, repair, replace underground utilities 
and wires, with any and all necessary cables, wires, anchors, guys, supports and fixtures 
appurtenant thereto, for the transmission of electricity, as well as any other services or items 
provided by Grantee, upon, over and across that certain parcel of land at 7 Katie Lane, 
Groveland, Essex County, Massachusetts, presently owned by the Grantor, such easement 
hereinafter referred to as the "Utility Easement," all as shown on the attached plan entitled, 
"Exhibit "A" Sketch Showing Proposed Easement in Groveland, MA for #7 Katie Lane (Lot 4) ~ 
Map 26 Lot 13-M," dated May 21, 2023, drafted by William G. Holt, PLS, RS, SE, 83 West 
Main Street, Merrimac, MA 01860.  In addition, the Grantee shall have the right to enter upon, 
pass and repass the subject premises in connection with the purposes set forth herein.   
 

Grantor retains the right to use the land within the "Utility Easement" for any and all 
purposes which Grantor desires, provided that Grantor's use of the subject premises within the 
"Utility Easement" shall not interfere with the Grantee's easement rights. The rights and 
easement granted to Grantees herein shall run with the land and shall be binding upon Grantor, 
Grantor's successors in title, and all parties claiming by, through or under Grantor. 

 
For Grantor's title, see deed recorded with Essex South District Registry of Deeds in 

Book 40784, Page 512. 
 
 
 
 

 

[SIGNATURE AND NOTARY ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  

P
ro

p
er

ty
 A

d
d

re
ss

: 
 7

 K
a

ti
e 

L
a

n
e,

 G
ro

v
el

a
n

d
, 

M
A

 0
1

8
3

4
 







#7 KATIE LANE (LOT 4) ~ MAP 26 LOT 13-MLOCATION:

PROPOSED EASEMENT

SKETCH SHOWING

EXHIBIT "A"
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

E
A

L T H  O F  MA S S A
C

H
U

S
E

T
T

S

P
R

O
F

E

S
S

I O
N A L  L A N D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R



Board of Selectmen 
183 Main Street 
Groveland, MA 01834 

Dog Off-Leash Areas 

There is 1 park in the Town of Groveland where dogs may roam 

off-leash accompanied by owner.  

Locations: 

 *Pines Recreation Area (Fully Fenced In)

Rules: 

 Keep your dog leashed prior to entering and upon exiting the

park  

 Dogs may not be left unattended, they will be impounded

 Immediately remove and properly dispose of your dog's

waste 

 Owner must have collar with current license tag at all times

 Dogwalker clients must have off-leash license from Groveland

 Dogs must be at least six [6] months old to be allowed off-

leash

 Unspayed dogs are not allowed at parks when in heat

For more info, contact the Board of Selectmen at 978-556-7204. 

Fees: 

Off-Leash: Spayed & Neutered dogs $70, unfixed $75  

 Non-Resident Off-Leash: $100 

DRAFT



License & Off‐Leash Application 2023 

1 

Groveland Town Clerk 
183 Main Street
Groveland, MA 01834
978‐556‐7221

Please Read Carefully. 

All dogs six (6) months or older must be annually licensed. 

There are two options to obtain a Dog License: a regular Dog License, or a Dog License/Off‐Leash Permit. The 
License/Off‐Leash Permit allows you and your dog to use the Off‐Leash Dog Park in Groveland.  

Option 1 – License Only: 

If you do not utilize the Off‐Leash Dog Parks in Groveland, you are required to purchase a license only.  
Fee: Spayed or neutered dogs $20.00 ‐ Intact dogs $25.00.  

Option 2 – License & Off‐Leash Permit Combination: 

If you take your dog to Groveland’s Off‐Leash Dog Parks, you must purchase both the Dog License and the 
Off‐Leash Permit. 
Fee: Spayed or neutered dogs $70.00 ‐ Intact dogs $75.00. [Non‐Groveland Dogs: $100.00] 

Ways to apply for a dog license: 

Online Preferred: You may order your Dog License & Off‐Leash Permit Online through the Groveland Town 
Clerk’s website: https://epay.cityhallsystems.com/selection 

In Person at the Town Clerk’s Office: Bring this form with your payment to the Clerk’s Office or drop in the 
white mailbox in front of Groveland Town Hall, 183 Main Street, Groveland, MA 01834. 

Mail: Mail this form with the check payable to: “Town of Groveland” at the above address.  

DRAFT

https://epay.cityhallsystems.com/selection


License & Off‐Leash Application 2023 

2 

  NOTE: Proof of rabies vaccination must accompany this form . Town Clerk Use Only 

Name of Owner  Groveland
Tag 

Address  Rabies Exp. 

City  Zip 
Code 

Phone #1  (  ) ‐ Phone #2    (  ) ‐

E‐Mail 

Dog’s Name  Date of Birth 
Month  Day  Year 

Primary Breed  Color 

Secondary Breed 
Gender 

MALE  FEMALE 

Veterinary Clinic  NEUTERED  SPAYED 

Check Box 

Option 1: License Only: spayed or neutered dog is $20.00 / intact dog is $25.00 

Option 2: License/Off‐Leash Permit: spayed or neutered dog is $70.00, intact dog $75.00 
[Non‐Groveland Dog‐$100.00] 

Signed under the penalties of perjury. Signature is required and indicates that the information you provided is accurate 
and complete, that you agree to follow program rules and regulations, and that you agree to forever release, acquit, 
discharge and covenant to hold harmless the Town of Groveland from any and all claims and rights of action or  
damages as a result of participation in this program. For questions regarding the rules and regulations of the Pines 
Recreation Area, call the Board of Selectmen at 978-556-7204. 

If your dog has passed, we are sorry for your loss. 
Please check the box and you will not receive future invoices. 

Signature  Date 
Month  Day  Year 

DRAFT



Town of Groveland 
Town Clerk 
183 Main Street
Groveland, MA 01834

2023 
Non-Groveland Resident Off-Leash Permit Application 

Non-Groveland Residents who wish to use Groveland’s Off-Leash Dog Parks must purchase an Off-Leash Permit 

from the Town Clerk’s Office. The Off-Leash Permit allows owners and their dogs to use Groveland’s Off-Leash 

Dog Parks. All dogs using Groveland’s Off-Leash Dog Parks must be permitted annually.

The annual fee is $100.00. A Non-Resident Off-Leash Dog Park Permit can be obtained as follows: 

 In person at the Town Clerk’s Office. Bring the form below with your payment of cash or check to the Town    
Clerk’s Office at Town Hall, 183 Main Street. 

By Mail. Mail this completed form with a check made payable to the Town of Groveland for $100. 

You must include a copy of your dog’s current rabies vaccination report and  

dog license from your City/Town 

Owner Phone 

Address City/Town Zip 

Owner email address 

Name of Dog Breed 

Color DOB 

Veterinarian Phone Rabies Expiration 

Please 

Check: Male Female Intact Neutered/Spayed 

Town Clerk Use Only 

< OVER > 

Permit # ____________ 

Issued: _____________ 

DRAFT



Non-Groveland Dog Permit fee: $100.00 
Read and sign below: 

Signed under the penalties of perjury. Signature is required and indicates that the information you have 

provided is accurate and complete, that you agree to follow program rules and regulations, and that you agree 

to forever release, acquit, discharge and covenant to hold harmless the Town of Groveland  from any and all 

claims and rights of action or damages as a result of participation in this program. 

DOG OWNER’S SIGNATURE:  DATE: ___________ 

You must include a copy of your dog’s current rabies vaccination report and dog 

license from your City/Town 

Town of Groveland Clerk 

183 Main Street
Groveland, MA 01834

978-556-7221

DRAFT



1

Rebecca Oldham

From: Jack Dodge <jaked251@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 12:18 AM

To: Rebecca Oldham

Subject: Dog park access 

Good morning Rebecca, 
 
I viewed the selectman’s meeting of May 22nd and have several questions and concerns about the dog park access.  
Concerns were raised about making sure dogs were vaccinated. I believe in order to procure a dog license in Ma and 
other states,it is necessary to show proof of vaccination. 
Therefore , display of a dog tag should be sufficient proof. 
 
Also , fees were discussed for use of the dog park. Will fees also be charged for use of other tax supported recreation 
facilities ie pickle ball , skate park ,splash pad etc.. 
We have lived in town for 47 yrs and raised our family here. One of our sons lives out of state and visits several times a 
year with his family and dog .Am I to assume that we would need to buy a permit for several days of use of the dog park 
? ?  
It seems to me that more thought and effort were put into pushing through this project than concern for taxpayers use . 
It was the taxpayers of the town that approved this facility ( without any stated intention of fees or restrictions )  
 
It seems that now that the project is complete it is becoming somewhat of an exclusive club rather than a public facility. 
Unintended consequences. 
 
It is my opinion that the dog park should be open to all taxpayers of the town and only dogs displaying proper dog tags 
be allowed. 
 
This will be much fairer and certainly less complicated than suggestions made during the meeting. 
 
Thank you for your time and for all you do for the town. 
 
Jack Dodge  
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Town of Groveland 

    Office of the Town Administrator 
183 Main Street  

Groveland, Massachusetts 01834 

 

(978)556-7204  

    www.grovelandma.com | ROldham@grovelandma.com 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

To:   Board of Selectmen  

From:   Rebecca Oldham, Town Administrator  

Date:  June 5, 2023 

Re::   Economic Development Committee Creation 

 

There is hereby established a nine (9) member Economic Development Committee 

(EDC) to advise the Board of Selectmen (BOS) on matters related to current and future 

economic development in the community. 

 

The Committee shall be made up of nine (9) voting members appointed by the 

Board of Selectmen.  

 

 Six (6) members of the Committee shall be business owners in Town  

 One (1) member of the Committee shall be a representative of the Planning Board  

 One (1) member of the Committee shall be a representative of the Zoning Board of 

Appeals 

 One (1) member of the Committee shall be a resident 

 

This Committee shall administratively fall within the Economic Development Planning and 

Conservation Department (EDPCD). The Town Planner and the Town Administrator will staff 

and assist the EDC. The Committee will meet once a month.  

 

 The committee focuses their efforts in the following areas:  

o Advise the Selectmen and other town boards on issues concerning bylaws, policies, 

regulations, and zoning that foster commercial growth, strengthen the local economy, 

and are consistent with maintaining the character of our community  

o Focus efforts on activities that maintain or expand the commercial & industrial tax 

base  

o Identify changing economic trends and develop recommendations to maximize 

interest in our community and attract these potential new businesses  

o Advocate for state and federal grants, incentives, or for improvement in regulations 

that help advance our economic priorities  

o Establish relationships and improve communication with local businesses  

 

 



 

        

    

     

      

    

          

          

       

               

    

        

         

    

    

        

          

   

         

           

            

 

        

   

           

      

      

     

        

PERAC MEMO #29/2022

PERAC 
C O M M O N W E A LT H  O F  M A S S AC H U S E T TS  |  P U B L I C  E M P LOY E E  R E T I R E M E N T  A D M I N I S T R AT I O N  C O M M I S S I O N  

PHILIP Y. BROWN, ESQ., Chair JOHN W. PARSONS, ESQ., Executive Director 

Auditor SUZANNE M. BUMP | KATHLEEN M. FALLON | KATE FITZPATRICK  | JAMES J. GUIDO | RICHARD MACKINNON, JR. | JENNIFER F. SULLIVAN, ESQ. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: All Retirement Boards 

FROM: John W. Parsons, Esq., Executive Director 

RE: 5% Local COLA option 

DATE: November 18, 2022 

On November 16, 2022, the Governor signed Chapter 269 of the Acts of 2022 into law. 

This act provides the local retirement systems with a local option to increase the Cost of 

Living Adjustment (“COLA”) for Fiscal Year 2023 to up to 5 percent on the base amount 

specified pursuant to G.L. c. 32, § 103. The approval of the increase can occur at any time 

during the fiscal year and will take effect as of July 1, 2022. 

The local approval mechanism is different than traditional COLA increases and COLA 

base increases. In order for a system to adopt a COLA increase pursuant to this act, the 

retirement board must vote for the increased amount and then it must also receive 

local approval. 

For purposes of this act, local approval means: 

• In a city, the mayor must recommend the increase to the city council and the council 

must vote in favor. 

• In a city having a Plan D or Plan E charter, the city manager must recommend the 

increase to the city council and the council must vote in favor. 

• In a town, the chief executive officer1 - the select board in nearly all cases - must 

vote in favor to accept the increase rather than the town meeting as is the case for 

COLA base increases. 

• In a district, or other political subdivision, the governing board, commission or 

committee must vote in favor to accept the COLA increase. 

1 As defined in G.L. c. 4, § 7, ''chief executive officer'', when used in connection with the operation of municipal 

governments shall include the mayor in a city and the select board in a town unless some other municipal office is 

designated to be the chief executive officer under the provisions of a local charter. 

FIVE MIDDLESEX AVENUE, SUITE 304 | SOMERVILLE, MA 02145 

PH 617 666 4446 | FAX 617 628 4002 | TTY 617 591 8917 | WWW.MASS.GOV/PERAC 

WWW.MASS.GOV/PERAC


           

    

      

      

    

     

        

      

               

   

       

          

             

    

            

     

 

         

         

      

 

   

  

    

 

  

     

     

M E M O R A N D U M - Page Two 

TO: All Retirement Boards 

FROM: John W. Parsons, Esq., Executive Director 

RE: 5% Local COLA option 

DATE: November 18, 2022 

• In a regional system, two-thirds of the cities and towns within the system must 

approve the increase. This is done in the same fashion as stated above for 

municipalities: in a city, by the city council upon recommendation by the mayor or, 

in a city with a Plan D or Plan E charter, the city manager; or, in a town, by approval 

of the chief executive officer (likely the select board) as defined by G.L. c. 4, § 7. 

• In a county, the county commissioners, who normally do not have a role in COLAs 

nor COLA base increases, must vote to accept and two-thirds of the cities and towns 

within the system must approve the increase in the same manner as stated above for 

regional systems. 

Though many local systems are comprised of multiple units such as housing authorities 

and districts, the two-thirds language only applies to regional and county systems as the 

approval specified in the statute only refers to cities and towns as voting political 

subdivisions. 

Section 2 of the act provides that a COLA increase pursuant to this act is retroactive to July 

1, 2022. Any COLA increase, in addition to any COLA previously adopted for FY 23, will 

become part of the fixed amount of a retirees’ retirement allowance in the same manner as 

all COLAs granted pursuant to section 103. 

PERAC has already received questions about estimating the cost of the enhanced COLA. 

PERAC Actuary John Boorack has provided the following formula for a conservative full-

cost estimate, not a one-year estimate, to assist boards in their planning: 

(0.2) x (COLA base) x (# of retirees/beneficiaries) 

If you have any questions about this memo, please contact PERAC’s General Counsel, 

Judith Corrigan, at (617) 591-8904 or at judith.a.corrigan@mass.gov. 

p:\admin\pera & perac memos\perac memo #29-2022.docx 

mailto:judith.a.corrigan@mass.gov


2,039 Number of retirees, survivors and beneficiaries per 2021 Annual Statement

6,524,800$      

0.2 Per PERAC

$16,000 ERRS COLA Base

Calculating the Cost of a 5% COLA for FY2023

Formula Per PERAC

Total Cost of 5% COLA



Town Yes No

1 Town of Boxford

2 Town of Essex

3 Town of Georgetown

4 Town of Groveland

5 Town of Hamilton

6 Town of Ipswich

7 Town of Lynnfield

8 Town of Manchester

9 Town of Merrimac 1

10 Town of Middleton

11 Town of Nahant

12 Town of Newbury 1

13 Town of North Andover 1

14 Town of Rockport

15 Town of Rowley 1

16 Town of Salisbury

17 Town of Topsfield

18 Town of Wenham 1

19 Town of West Newbury 1

Total Number Yes 4

Percentage of All Units - Yes 21%
As of 4/26/2023

5% COLA Vote for FY2023








